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The Court: What says the Government?

1
Mr. Doar: The Government is fcady. 2
The Court: What says the defendants? l s
Mr. Pitts: We are ready. i 4
The Court: The defendants are ready? » 1 3
Mr. Pitts: Yes, sir. ‘ 6
The Court: All vitnesses in this case please stand where you : 7
sre and raise your right hand and be sworn. ‘ 3
(Witnesses stand and are sworm by the Clerk) 9
The Court: Does sither side ask far the rule? I
Mr. Pitts: Yes, sir. 1

The Court: All witnesses please go out in the hall and remain ' 12
there until we call you. We will get to you as‘quickly as ve 4
can and we will excuse you as quickly as we can. 14

(Witnesses leave the ccurt room) 15

‘Mz, Doar: We have a request from a newspapet reporter and wve ;o

sre trying to work that out now. ) 17
Mr. Pitts: We have nc objection to that. - 1%
Mr. Pitts: Judge, we would like to excuse Mr. Atkins and Mr. g

Bibb from the rule. They are the Dallas County Board of Regis= og

trars. ) ' 21

‘The Court: Are they subpoenaed as withesses? ‘09
Mr. fitts: Yes, sir, subpoena duces tecum. 523
The Court: Do you have any objection? .24
Mr. Doar: No, we have no objection. 525
The Court: All righc.. You may proceed, ;25

Mr. pitts: What I want to know now, are we procecding om the o7

motion to dismiss? 98
The Court: Do you wish to proceed on the motion to dismiss? Ag‘,y
Mr. Pitts: Yes, sir. %30
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The Court: We will take it up first them. There is no need

for the reporter taking this down. All right, proceed. !
(Attorneys for both sides address the Court) ‘
The Court: The Court reserves its ruling on the various mo- 3
tions to dismiss, ' f
Mr. Pitts: 1In this case you denied the temporary restraining °
order and it has been affirmed by che Fifth Court of Appeals, :
The Court: That is correct.
Mr. Pitts: What we sre here today on is a motion for a tempo- :
rary injunction.

10
The Court: That's my understanding. 511
Mr. Pitts: We are not trying the case as such. We are just ”
trying it on a motion for a temporary injunction. 13
The Court: That {s my understanding. All rpight. 14
Mr. Pitecs: It i{s our contention then --- {t is two things 1 15
want to straighten out first, The first i{s that .I understand
the Court is going to leave about five o'clock. 17
The Court: 1 am going to hear this case today. v18

Mr., Pitts: Yes, sir. What I want some understanding with the

Court is, that Mr. Doar wont take all of the day and then leave 20
the defendants no time for their case. That's the first thing 2
1 vant to straighten out. : 22
The Court: ;'n going to give you time to put your case on. 23
1've got to go to Mobile tomorrow, Wont be back here tomorrow. 24
If 1 have to 1 will come back another day to wind it up, but 25
there 18 no reason for this case to take more than a day. . 26
Mr. Pitts: Judge, the other thing I want to straighten out 27
vith the Court is, .it i{s our contention that this motion for a .98
temporary injunctlion can be tried solely on affidavits, or can 29

be tried on affidavits and aral testimony, or it can bé tried 30
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on oral testimony, |
The Court: I think you-are correct, What {s your thought as

' 2

to affidavits, or partially affidavits and partially live wit-
. . ‘ : ' 3

nesses? |
- N . 4

Mr. Doar: My thought {s, your Honor, that these things are not

(<1}

8 disputed question of facts, that the Court should require in

cases of temporary injunction that affidaﬁcs be submitted. 6
Number two, with respect to certain of the witnesses, where af-~ 7
fidavits have already been filed by both parties, that the
Court can consider the l"ffida;rits, but that the person also be ?
present here for cross-examination, if the other side desires 10
it. Now, with respect to the peqple that made affidavits for n
us, ve have them present. 1 don't think it is necessary that 12
the Court require the attorneys to ask all of the same questions?s
in the affidavit, if he is here available for cross-examination "
for either side. And on the other hand, where there is a dis- 15
puted question, particularly with respect to the purpose, of 16
course I feel that we should take some oral testimony. And we 1
propose to keep it as brief as possible. a
The Court: Now, attached to your petition are numerous affi- ©
davits, . %
21
Mr. Doar: Four, your Honor. '
The Court: Now, as to those parties, you have them available =
for cross-examination if the other side wishes 1¢? =
Mr. Doar: They are. ?24
. 26
The Court: In the absence of the other side wishing to cross- -
examine, you would not put those witnesses on. 1Is that right? :
Mr. Doar: There may be several questions I want to ask one or ;8
more of the witnesses, but not all of them. 29
The Court: Well, I would suggest tha: we do it this way --- I 30

P




; : thi:k it is discretionary, and I thiak you can do it either wvay,
I think it would stand up either way. Use the affidavits as ! .
3 | . much as you can, and in instances in which you caanot use affi-‘ 2
1 davits please confine the testimony as compactly as you can. 3
: ;'Rcv. Mz, Pitts, 1 understood from you over the phone and I un~ ‘f
ﬁ derstand it from you this morning that you dc have mumbers °_£ ;
j sffidavits, ’
Mr. Pitts: Yes, sir, I think we have twelve or fourteen, '
# The Court: Are those parties here? ?
Mr. Pitts: Judge, my information is this morming -=-- 1 haven't‘ :
b checked, butmy information is most of those parties are here, :
t We issued subpoenas for them yesterday, 1;
> s The Court: You do mot intent using them unless === you just in,-is
‘:' § tend using the affidavits? v14
e. :j'g Mr. Pites: 1 intead just using the affidavics. .
] ; :3 ‘:; The Court: Or unless Mr. Doar wishes go crcss-examine those 18
Eég parties, All right, let's proceed, : -
; : g Mr. Doar: Sometime, at the first recess, may we study them? 18
1 The Court: Yes. . A 19
Mr., Doar: We haven't seen them. 20
Th\e Court: Will you furuish the other side with copies of the 21
affidavits during recess? ’
Mr. Pitts: We prepared copies of all those affidavits for the o
other side, | 124
The Court: Put on your case, Mr. Doar, and you will have op- 25
portunity to look them over before procgeding. 26
) Mr. Madiscn: Let the record show that all of the defendants 27
1 @ deny the allegations of the injunction. | :28
The Court: All right, i' )
o o 130
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Mr. Doar: Llet the record show that the plaintiff is calling

C g e e

‘this witness as an adverse. witness, ‘ ;
The Court: Yes, eoir, : -
r 3
!
N . ‘4
'3
]
JAMES G. CLARK, JR., being duly sworm, testified as follows: .
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR, DOAR: ' .
Q Will you state your full name, please? A James G, Clark, Jr. 9
Q How old are you? A Forty. . ' 10
Q What {s your educaticn? A Beg pardon? » il 1
Q What is your education? A I have a2 high sch'ool oducati_on. six 12
years college, ' ‘13
Q Where {s your home? A Browns, Alabama, 4
Q 1s that within Dallas County? A It 1is. ‘15
Q How long hzve you 1£§ed in Dallas County? A Sixteen ysars. 16
Q How long have you been in the State of Alabama? A Forty years. ‘17
Q What {s your race? A White, 18
Q Are you a registered voter? A 1 am, 19
Q What is your occupation? A Sneriff. .20

Q How long have you been sheriff of Dallas County? A It wiIl be ei.gh%1

years next November, . .22

Q rrior to becoming sheriff of Dallas County, did you have any prior . o4

law enforcement experience? A 1 did. .24

Q Will you tell us briefly vhat that law enforcement experience was? o5
A I vas assistant commissioner of revenue for the State of Alabama, 26

Q Will you just briefly indicate what your duties were in that job?

27
‘A It vas of an investigative nature. |28
: 1

f
; Q Were you investigating probable violators of some of the criminal 29

‘ gtatutes of the State of Alabama? A When they pertained to the revenuye laws l 30

.
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of the Scate of Alabama, ‘

Q How long did you hold tnat job? A Ten months,
Q Are you an elected official of Dallas County? A I am,

Q 1s the sheriff's job of Dallas County a full time job? A It is,

Q ran. we how many deputy shariffs did you bave during the months of :1
May, June and July of this year, please. A What itind of deputies do you mean? ‘)

Q I mean your full :ime‘deputiu. A VWell, I have eight f1eld deputies ;b

- two in the office, who have deputy powers; also cﬁtec Jailers, who 2lsq have !
deputy sheriff powers. :

Q Will you tell the Court, for :hf record, the names of tnose depucy 1
sheriffs? A Chief Deputy L. C, Cracker, and =--

Q (Interrupting) That's Cer-o-c-kee-r? A Yes. Assistant Chief Dep- 11;
uty M. F. Suther, J, E, Houston, H, L. Nichols, Charles Heber, willtam‘ Aver-
ette,Doyle Wrightee= I've lost count, 1

Q Are those the ones that you can’ remember at this time? 4 That's 1

all of the field deputies that I can Temember at this time. I'm sure there're 16
more, but I've 'loag count. And Virgil Bates, yes, 1
Q Thank you. Are these deputies that you say are full time deputies?
A Y“'
19
Q Are they uniformed law enforcement officers? A The field deputies

are, |21

Q 1In connection with your vork as sheriff of Dallas County have you 22

23
Q Tell the Court briefly what schools you have attended, A 1 have at-

attended any schools with respect to lavw enforcement? A Yes,

24
tended the Police Academy in Montgomery, attended various civil defense schools

a5

various traffic schools, Jones Law School in Montgomery, . 2
Q Are you a graduate of Jones Law Sckool of Montgomery? A vYes, o7

Q Are you a lawyer? 4 No, 1 am not, 528

Mr. Madison: 1'd like to have this in the record. Cen your ‘29

Honor see and observe the sheriff vho ig testifying? From . 30

Sl L B T e e e T T e
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vhare be i# and where you are? : 1

The Court: Yas, sir,

[ ]

Mr. Madison: Let the record show that,

[ )

'Q Do iyo.u also have, to aid you irn law enforcement with the law enforce-

ment p:obiems io Dallas County, a sheriff's posse? A Yes.

Q Could you driefly tell the Court when that was organized, and the G

‘: aumber of persons in it, and how that operates? A It vas === @r === 1 don't 7
y vemember the exact ::tc, about three years ago. It operates upan call of the §
] sheriff to help out/any situation that we don't think wve, thec I, don't chink 9
4 ws have enough deputiss to handle, Any situation that might arise, 10
Q HoQ many people are on this posse? A I couldn't tell you. 1

: - Q Could you give us an approximate oumber? A Well, there are sever- 12
1 > - al hundred, . 13
: ':' 3 % Q Let me ask you this: are all of your field deputies’of the white 14
‘ :§§ race? A Yes. ' 15

3 : 4 Q Are sll of your office deputies of the white race? A Yes, 16
«1 ;%g Q Are all of you't jailers of the vhite race?l A Yas, 17
: E g Q Are all of :hé members of the posse of the white race? A Yes, 18
: Q Sheriff Clark, were you aware of the fact that the Federal Govern- . 19
i ment in 1961 filed s suit against the Board of Registrars of Dallas County? 20
g A Y was, ' o 21
b Mr. Pitts: Now we object to that., We object to going into. 29
that field, We object to any reference to the suit of the Unit=yy

) ed States of America versus the Dallas County Board of Regis~ '24

} trars, ) | 25
h The Court: Overrule the objection. . 26
Mr. Pitts: We except, 27

. ‘ : The Witness: Repeat the question, please.. :28
:: Q Were you aware of the fact that there was a suit filed by the Unitec!. 20
' | States of Amarica in April of 1961 challenging the operation of the Dallas 30
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? County Board of Voting Registrars? A Indirectly, y.el.
Q You say indirectly, What do you mean? A Well, primarily, bearing

' 2
- econversations, and reading the newspapers.
Q MNow, in conmnection vith your law enforcement duties as sheriff of
: 4
‘ pallas County, do you from time to time serve as a lav enforcement officer
: 3
outside of Dallas County? A Yes,
. - 6
Q Did you this spring serve as a law enforcement officer in Birmingham,
. - . 7
_Alabmma? A Yes,
. 8
Q Por how long wers you there? A Off and on for three weeks.
oo . - 9
Q. Did you have any of your men there with you? A Yes,
L 10
Mr. Gayle: Your Honor, 1 object.
! ' 1
The Court: Sustain the cbjectiom.
: . : . 12
> Q Where is your office lecated? A 1Im the Dallas County court house,
b - < 13
1 b ; Selma, Alabama.
J S 13 u
3 L@ Q On which floor of the Dallas County court house is it located? A
Q %8 : 15
: ,.3 o First floor,
1 oo % 16
] zig Q 1s that on the same floor that the office of the Dsllas County Board
-9 2 : 17
] « £ of Registrars is located? A It is, ,
] ("] § 1%
] Q How far is your office from their office? Approximately. A Approx=-
.1 . 19
- : imately 100 feet.
1 ' _ 20
Q Were you aware of the fact that registration by negroes to vote:picke
21
A ed up during the spring and eaxly summer of 1962 here?
E < : - 22
; Mr. Gayle: We object to that, It is immaterial. This is an
' : . 23
¥ injunction suit, f
24
The Court: I don't think it makes any difference, It is imma-
25
1 : terial, but let him answer, .
1 26
‘ Mr. Pitts: 1 didn't hear what the question was.
!
27
‘ The Witness: "Picked up”, I don't understand the questiom, '.’.8
! Mr. Doar: I will rephrase the question, 20
f ! -
: Q 1 direct your attention to the spring and early summer of 1963, not
|

e i —————————— e e e -




ik

il Al L

GERTRUDE M. SAILEY

Offcil Cout Rupates
FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF ALASAMA

R x e *_"""M'I o e e

" '82, and asking you whether or not you obwerved more negroes going into the L
vegistrar's office during the spring and early summer of 1962 than theretofore 2

during your term of office as sheriff? A 1 was not aware of it. ‘ 3

Q Did you know that there was a Dallas COQnty Voters' League organized \

by ncérﬁ eitizens in Dallas County? Were you aware of that? s
Mr, Pitts: We sbject to that, | G

The Court: I think that's material. Overrule. 7

The Witness: That I was aware of what? . 8

Q Were you sware of the fact that there was a Dallas County Voters' 9

l;cag_ue organized by negrc citizens in Dallas County? A I had heard the name, 10
Q When had you First heerd the name? A I don't remember the exact 1

time. . 12
Q Was {t before this year or during this year? A During this year, 13

Q Are you able to fix the time at all? A No, not exactly, 14

Q Did you know that there were certain negro citizens from outside of 15

Dallas County who have come in here to work on voter registration among negroesle
of Dallas County? A Yes, 17
Q When did you first know that? A 1 don’t remeémber exactly, 18

Q Sheriff Clark, there have been a number of so-called mass meetings 19

by negroes of Dallas County this spring and early summer, Is that correct? 20
A Yes, a1
Q And the first one of those meetings was on the l4th, of May, 1963, o

Is that .correcﬂ A 1 don't know the exact date, | ‘23
Q ‘Would you say that wasn't the exact date? A I wouldn't say it was- 24

_ n't the exact date. 25

Q Now, you were subpoenaed to bring with you your records with respect og

to these meetings by negroes, Did you bring any records with you? A No, I o7

did not, ;28
Q@ Did you go through your files to see whether or not you had any 29
. vecords that were asked for? A I don't have them, © 30
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Q Did you ever have any such records? A Yes. S 1 H

~

Q Where are the records mow! A My attorney has them,

@ Mr. Doar: Your Homor, I'd like to have the witness make avail-

able to us those records which his attormey halA now, the records 4
{n econnection with these mass meetings. S -
The Court: Do you have them, Mr. Picts? G
Mr. Pitts: Yes, sir, I've got them. They sre notes made by dif- 7
ferent deputies , ‘g
The Court: Will you furnish them to Mr. Doar? 9
Mr. Pitts: 1'd like for them to be returned. If he'd 1like to 10
have them copied «-= : . 1
The Court: That's quite all right. :12
Mr. Pitts: I have no objection to him seeing thez here nov, snd 18
1 am handing Mr. John Doar , attorney for the Depat:un:'cf Jus=- 14

tice, four yellow sheets of transcript. . 15

©

GERTRUDE M. SAILEY

The Court: All right. '16

Me, Pitts: Now, Judge, I have here some typewritten sheets that 17

sre mine, My information is they are not originals, but 1 don’t 1%

Offil Cond Bopate
SOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF ALASAMA

know, See what I'm getting at? ‘ 19
The Court: Are they exact copies of what Mr. Doar has? 20
Mr. Pitts: I don't know, A .21

The Witness: They were just filed. Information. We haven't 22
checked to see if they are exact copies. Azs
Mr. Pitts: 1 don't have any objection to handing him these four 94
typewritten copies. 1'11 hand him nm‘i four typewriten transcriptss

and 1'd like all of these returned to me. I will be glad to 26

NP

furnish him with photostatic copies, And if any of those sre 27

q offered in evidence I'd like to substitute photostatic copies. 28

Q Sheriff Clark, the documents which were just fwrmished to me by your 30

The Court: You may substitute certified copies. " 89 f
%

;
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attorney indicate that they deal with certain activities on May 14the y June

24ch, , July the 8th., and July 15th. 'of this year. A Yes. :

Q And they alsc raflect that two of cthem deal with May l4th., three ofv o

" ghem deal with July 8th., and that there are a total of ei}ht separate docu=- :
ments in all., Is that correct? (Hands said documents to witness, and witness 5
‘eoun:s same) A Eight, _ 6
Q Now, 1'd like to ask you whether or not you have any notes or memo- 7

randums dealing with a mass meeting by negroes at the First Baptist Church in 3
Selma on June 17, 19637 A June 17th.? 9
Q Yes, A That is alll have there (indicating sbove referred to eigh:w

1s anything on thers on June 17th.?

documents), As far as I know, 1
Q There is nothing here on the 17th. A Ther I don’t have anything. 12
Q Can you tell me whether or not you had~'persons at the meetinag of 13
June 17th. covering the meeting? A We had people at every meeting that I 14
was avare of, '15

Mr. Doar: I want to say to the Court that one of the witnesses 16

that we propose tc subquently call is an FBI agent, whe furnish 17

ed information from the sheriff's department with respect to 18
the June 17th. meeting, Now, if there vas such a report it 19
would just shorten the testimony. 20

Mr. Pitts: 1 also want to point out tc the Court, 1f he has it,,

it has been misplaced somevhere, The sheriff delivered to me at oo
wy re‘ques: all of the notes that he had of any kind that were o4

in the file. He brought the entire file to my office and hand- 94

ed it to me. 25
The Witness: There are some that my deputies have not turmed ag

1n. to me, w7

Mr. Pitts: Your Honor, if there are scme notes that he didn't 28

have in this file, I don't know about 1t. | 29
Q Your testimony is that you had deputies of yours at all of the meet- 30

i
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; attorney indicate that they deal with certain activities on May l4th., June

2th,, July the Sth., and July 15th. of this year. A Yes.
Q And they alsc reflect that two of them deal with May 14th., three o
them deal with July 8th,, and that there are a total of eight separate docu-~

ments in all, Is that correct? (Hands inid documents to witness, and witnes

counts same) A Eight,

Q Now, I'd like to ask you whether or not you have aty notes or memo-

_ randums dealing with a2 mass meating by negroes at the Firs: Baptist Church in

Selma on June 17, 19637 A June 17th,?
Q Yes. A That is all I have there (indicating above referred to eig:
documents), As far as I know. 1s anything on there on June 17th.?
Q There is nothing here on the 17tk, A Then 1 don't have anything.
Q Can you tell me whether or not you had persons at the meeting of
June 17th, covering the meeting? A We had people at every meeting that I
was aware of,
Mr. Doar: 1 want to say to the Court that one of the witnessecs
that we propose tc subquently call is an FBI agent, who furnist
ed 1n£crmation'£rom the sheriff's department with respect to
the June '17th, meeting. Now, if there was such a report it
wvould just shorten the testimony,
Mr. Pitts: 1 also want to point out to the Court, if he has it
it has been misplaced-lonevhet?. The sheriff delivered to me at
my request all of the notes that he had of any kind that were
in the file. He brought the entire file tc my office and hand-
ed it to me,
The Witness: There are some that my deputies have not turned
in to me.
Mr. Pitts: Your Hozor, {f there are scme notes that he didn't
have’ in this file, I don't know about it,

Q Your testimony is that you had deputies of yours at all of the meet-
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ings, mass meetings by negroes that have been held this spring and summer that

| you knew about? A That's tight,

Q pid you have them there vhether or not they were held for religious

. purpose? A Bag pardon?

Q How did you decide whether tc send a deputy to the meeting or mot?
A Well, my job is to preserve the peace of Dallas County, and 1 observed the
first meeting, the unrest that was there around the church, and I decided it
would be a good idea to have somebody there to observe them all,

Q Did you have law enforcement officers inside of the meetings from
that ﬁight on? A Yes,

Q Was he there with any kind of radio equipment? A Yssa

'Q What kind of radio equipment did he have? A They had wslkie-:alkieir

Q Were these particular deputies instructed to make notes of what took
place at the meetings? A Yes, .
Q And were those inetructions giver to them by you? A Yes,
Q And are these documents which you have handed to me the notes that
your deputies made at these meetings? A Yes,
Mr. Doar: With the Court's pirmission, 1'd like tc give these
notes to one of the attorneys who is assisting me, so he can
run through them .vhile the wvitness {s testifying, so that we
can shorten things, .
The Court: That's sll right. He is sn attorney wvith the De=-
partment of Justice?
Mr, Doar: Yes, sir,
The Court: Wait just a minute, Are you going to offer :Qese
documents?
Mr. Doar: We'd like to offer them ==~
Mr. Pitts: (Interrupting) Just a minute, Judge, we wvant to

substitute photographic copies of tliem.

The Court: That is all right. That's perfectly all right. ':

‘,, S - I U

1!
1
1
1
1
1¢
17
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Mr. Madison: I objec:v to his offering those reports, I haven't
i seen them, 1
.o 2
: a . The Court: I haven't seen t hem either, 1 reserve my ruling. .
Mr, Pitzs: 1 object to them on behalf of the defendant, Jim B
. i Clark, These are confidential records of the sheriff's office f
F "; _and of law cnforcament, And vhat these recotcis are, chey' ware :
3 measures taken by the sheriff's officers, and information obtain- 7
3 b ) cd'b-y the sheriff's officers, to preserve the peace of Dallas .
j County, and the source of some of this information we have is 0
confidential, and the contents of some of this stuff is confiden- 10
till.v And it {s notes made by these deputies and reports to the 1
sheriff's offica‘ And I object to the introduction of those or -
E 1 = 3 that basis; and further, I would like the Court not to allow- l;
1 ‘:' 3 § these records to leave this court room. 14
3 ) -é.% The Court: I think the dbc\ments are admissible, and I think the 18

1 @ ;@3 § contents of cbgm should not be made public, But I do think they
3 g%% are admissible. ' "
i 1 . g Mr, Pitts: That's all right, that is my opinion, 15
. The Court: I do not think the information in there is public in- 19

i‘ formation., Where {s the gentlemen who is gobi.ng to peruse them?
Mr, fitts: One other objection 1'd like to put in there --'thesezl

potes that are offered in evidence are made lby deputy sheriffs,

] ; persons who attended :hése meetings on behalf of the sheriff's

office, but the contents of those are not binding on the sheriff. 2;‘
; 1 ' ~ The Court: All right. : 25
i ] Q After these reports were delivered to you, did you read them? A 25
i Yes. .
1 e Q Did you receive any reports from any other law enforcement officers ag
.rt 4 .o: agency prior to the 18th, day of June pertsining to Bernard LaFayette? A 2
" 3 Yes. o B I
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N )
Q TProm vhom did you receive those reports? A FBI and our State Departe '

‘'ment of Investigation.

‘ ‘Q When were you first advised by the FBI with respect to Bernard La- f
Faystte? A I can't tell you the date. :
Q- What was the substance of what they advised you? A He just said -

that he was hare for thé purposs of ~== I don't fmb&r now, 1 chink he said : r
he represented the scu'flen: Non=-Viclence Co-érd{.nacing Committee, 7
‘Q Did you inquire of the FBI as to wl_u: that organization was? A 1 8
don't remember too much about the ‘conversation, _ 0
Q But it was before the 17th. of June, this year: A To the best of 10

wy knowledge, 1 ;
Q What reports did you receive from the State of Alabsma with respect 12
to Bernard LaFayette? A Tnat he was working, That's all I know. Trying to 13
organize the niggers, I believe he said. 1
Q This report that you got fgom the State, was it in writing or oral? 15
AA It was by telephone conversation, 16
Q Could you give us the date or that, when you were so advised? A N::,17
1 couldn't, 15

Q Did you ever get any reports from the City of Selma about Bernard La-m

Fayette? A There was some conversation pertaining to him, but I couldn'’t say 20

whether they advised me or I advised them, They were aware of him at the time 21"
1k hem,

»I talked to them 23

Q Now, are you s member of the White Cit{zens Gouncil of Dallas Ccunty?23
A No, I am not, 24
Q Do you know a negro by the name of Bosie Reese? A  Yes, 25
Q Did you arrest him on the 17th, day of June, 1963, at the court house
-in Dallas County? A I arrested him, I don't remember the date, o7

Q 1t your varrant of arrest reflects the 17th, day of June, would you oy

. challenge that? A No, not at all, oy

Q What was the initial charge that you placed against him? A Failure 30
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'to obey the lawful arder of an officer, . A _ : :
1 . : ] S 8
Q What wvas the order of the officer that he failed to obey? A He was )
e -loiteriag in the court house and ! ordered him to leave. ' . :
| 3
4 Q You are the person that ordered him to leave, {s that correct? A ‘ 4
. © 7" 1'm one of them, yes. ;
. ] : . =
-~ . . » P 3
] Q Do you have 2 ==~ strike that. Are you in charge of maintaining ore= G
der in the court house at Dallas County? A Yes. 1
Q Do you have amy zules or feguht:ions with respect tc who may come ‘ 8
and go in the court house? A Well, we have a rule over there than any time - 9
] there is a line there that there be mo one molesting that line. 1
a Q 1Is that rule writtec or is it unwritten? A Tt's an unwritten rule, il
4
! but iz's a rule that has been standing for years when tag lines are in the 12

hall, We have long tag 1ines and we have that rule --- thst any time there is 13

a line that there be no one that molests it. ) 1
the court house advising the public of this 15'

-]

BAILEY

Q Are there any signs ia

©
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" rule? A No, there’s not. 16

Q Can you recall any persons that you have ever arrested for violating 1

Offciof Coust Reportes

FOURTH JUDICIAL CIACUIT OF ALAJAMA

that rule prior to the time that Bosie Reese was arrested? 1%
Mr. Pitts: We object to that. He's trying to === 19
3 The Court: Sustain the objection, 120

Mr. Doar: Your Honmox, 1 would like to ask the Court to pern:i:: 21

the witness to amswer under Rule 45, for the reason 1 reapict- 29

fully feel that this ansver is relevant. I understand the 23

1 Court's ruling, but under Rule 45 in the absence of the jury, o4

in order that the parties may make s full record of this case, on

] ' the Court has discretion to permit the counsel to pursue the  ap

line of questioning, after the Court has sustained the objectiony;
d The Court: Sustain the objection. L

Mr. Doar: Does the Court by that mean that I could mot pursuell)

the question?

PR R

L

ol ——




T e (i B

The Court: Yes, I sustain the objectiom,

© 1
Mr. Doar: Yeur Homor, 1 apologize, but I don't understand 1if 2
you mean I cannot go on, Or === | 3
The Court: (Interrupting) I don't chink the question is rele- 4

vant,

(1]

Mr. Doar: Does the Court also decline to parmit ma &o procaad G

under Rule 45?7 - i
The Court: Let me see Rule 45, 3
Mr. Doar: Not Rule 45, It is Rule 43-C, . ‘ 9
(Mr. Doar hands book to the Court and the Court reads silently) 10
Mr., Doar: Rule 43-C, .ll
b The Court: I will let him answer. . 12
? - § The Witneas: Will you vepeat the question, please? 13
% 5 é Q Do you gecall having arrested any other pars:;n for violating this '14
%3 a :}% unwritten rule for molesting the line in the court house prior to the arrest 15
% :e} i of Bosie Reese? A No, they slways left when I told them tc. 16
;%é Q Subsequent to Bosie Reese's arrest, is it not a fact that the war= 1
E % rant for arrest was changed? A Yes, 18
E Q Who made that change? A Judge Mallory. :19
4 ] Q What was the --= how was the warrant for arrest changed? 20
) Mr. Gayle: Your Homor, the warrant is the best cv'fdenée. .21
: Mr, Doar: According to the warrant, it was changed so that 20
Bosie Reese was charged with conduct likely to provoke a brerach23
of the peace. ' ?24
1 : Mr. Pitts: The warrant is the best evidence. '25
The Court: The warrant is the best evidence, 1f that's whrt 2¢;>
it says, it will show it, - e
q Q What was the conduct -~- strike that. Was the conduct that Bosie 2
} Reese engaged in likely to cause & breach of the peace for failure to obey o
your lawful order? A That was part of it, yes. ;I:;o
PR AREEA L T e e
|
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Q What was the other part of it? A The fact that be was standing

?elocc to the line.

Q Did you see him standing close to theline? A Yes,

{ ] Q What did you u.e? A 1 saw him standing there with a pad snd a cem-
? ) era.
S | Q Was that at the time that you made the arrest? A No,
—a Q When you saw him standing there vith a pad and a camera, what did

you do? A I went up and asked him what he was doing there, and he said he

was waiting for a friend.

Q Then what happened?
Mr. Pitts: 1I'd like for him to prove at this time by the sher-

{£f that that was a voter registration line,

Q Do you know what that line was waiting for? A To go in ths Board

of Registration office. '

BALLEY

Q How many persons were in that line that you recall? A Ten or twelv

== ] don't remember exactly.
Q And did you ask him to leave? A Yas.

Q Did be leave? A I'm not sure. He weat toward the front entrance

Offctal Cot Repotta
FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT DF ALABAMA

GERTRUDE M.

: of the court house on the Lauderdale side,
_ Q You did not arrest him at that time? A No, I did not.
i E Q Now, did you ever see him standing around the line sgain? A 1 saw
‘ - him near the line, yes, a few minutes later, ‘
3 Q What was he doing when you saw him the second time? A He wvas stand
F : : ' ing outside of the door of my office,
‘ Q How far was the line from outside door of your office? A Iim not
. I . | sure st that time.
E t : Q What was he doing when he was standing outside of the door of your
' . i q v office? A He was just standing there,
f : ' f Q 1s that vhen you arrested him? A Yes.,
i Q Who set the bond on Bosie Reese, the appearance bond? A Judge Mal-

L
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. . Mt. Doar: Your Honor, I have marked for identification as !
(] o © plaiptiff's Exhibits 1 and 2 the affidavit snd wsrrant for ar- *
rest and the docket sheets in the cases involving Bosie Reese, ®
" which have been served on him, and I offer them ir evidence. !
Mr. Pltta: - Thst will be perfectly all vight, provided --=1 5_
wsnt to see that certificate of Judge Mallory, 1 want to see ¢
gothing has been taken out (examines said exhibits). I don't !
see any change, There are two warrants. Talking about a changes
tn them, 1 don't see any change in Chem. o°
. The Court: All right. Proceed, ‘-0
_ (Abaove described Plainciff's Exhibits 1 and 2 admitted in evi- "
- i dencs without objection) ' . i:
b 3 Q mn you went up to talk to Bosie Reese the first time and he was "
":}E standing by the line of persons waiting to enter the Board of Registration 5
@ ;3% office, vere some negroes standing in che line? A Yes. 16
Z%g Q And he told you that he was. checking on the line, didn't he? A .

..:. % Said some negroes in the line? ‘ X
¥ ® ) i 14
’ # . Q You said there were some negroes standing in the line? A Yes, "
1 ; Q And he told yct'x he was checking on the line, Did he tell you that? %
: A No, ;l
1 Q _Are you sure of that? A 1 don't remember his telling me that. o
f { Q Well, would you deny that he told you tha:? A All 1l ramembu; was ;
i f be told me he was vaiting for a friend to come back, ey
1 Mr. Pitts: Your Honor, if he is reading from any transcript ’ -
F ) there to Sheriff Clark, 1 think that Sheriff Clark ought to 26
:’ ] hav;e an opportunity of reading the tramscript. It's an unfair -
-' 3 q | attack, ag
Q 1'd like to direct your :cte_ntion to page 52 of the tramscript of o
the proceedings before Judge Mallory, in which you testified as & witness, do 30
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you remember that, sir? A Yes, ) L
f i " Q This proceeding tack place July 11, 1963, 11:50 4. m. A Yes, .
e ' Q And on pags 52 of‘:hc :rz‘mscripc. 1 direct your attention to one of
§ ) your answers in the middle of the page. A Well, that was nearer the time that A
. =%.‘ it happened, and my umory was better then I'm sure. ' . .
i_ Q At any rate, what your testimony was on :llte 11th, of‘July in regard ’
to what you asked him and what he said to you is correct? A Yes. 7
Q Now, Mr. Clark, the warrant in this case, in these cases agairnst
§ 4 Bosie Re'ese reflact that M. H, Houston signed the warramts, Did you go before
' % Mr., Houston to have the warrants signed? A No, T did not, 10
Q Do you know how Mr, Houston happened to sign the warrants? A Mrs. 1
E 1 - Houston happens to be the Circuit Clerk, 22
‘ { . i , Mr. Pitts: Judge, Mrs, M. H, Houscon is clerk of :x.\e Circuilt 13
l g K] 3 Court of Dallas County, mé she is also the clerk of the Dallas 14
E - é‘a
E e ;S é Couaty Court. , 1
' 1 :sj; Mr. McLeod: Your Honmor, I'd like to say that this is oot the 16
1 ;%g varrant he was arrested on, As solicitor of the I'-‘ourth Judicie "
: E %’ al Circuit === these sheriffs are not lawyers,l the deputies are 1%

{ . 3 not lawyers e=- and when warrants come before me then 1 prepare 19
it in a legal form, and I take it to the clerk to be signed, 20

" And that is what happened in that case, That is a suSatitute 21

F : warrant of the register, ‘ o
3 § ‘ Mr. Doar: Do you have the original warrant of arrest? 23
Mr. McLeod: No, I did have it. ) 24

Mr. Doar: 1 would like to have the original warrant of arrest 25

§ to be made a part of the record in this case, _ a6
r_ The Court: All right, :21
4 ; ‘ Q Do you recall signing an affidavit on June 19th. charging Bernard og

LaFayette with the crime of vagrancy? A Yes, ) "oy

Q When did you sign that affidavit? What time of day? A I don't re- 10

'
4
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member. - x f P
Mz. Pitts: Now, your Homor, we object to any testimony about i
Bernard LaFayette, He was tried in the Dallas County Court and [
he was acquitted, And the Government is not in any position to 3
say he didn't get a fair trial, 4 &
r-
The Court: I don't see any connection with the trial of this 8
. 6
case, Was LaFayette tried and was he acquitted? 1
v 7 »
Mr., Pitts: He was acquitted, yves, sir, He was acquitted by - }
"
Judge Mallory. Bernard LaFayette is in no position to attack
. 9 .
or say he didn't get a fair trial, |
10
The Court: 1I'm pot going to re~try it. Go ahead,
i Mr, Doar: My question was when on that date did he sign the i
12
< affidavit charging Bernard LaFayette with vagrancy.
> 2 - 13
- 3 Mr. Picts: 1 object,
<qs ' 14
-2 The Court: Sustain the objection. :
<8 15
.J o Mr., Doar: Will the Court permit me to continue the questicn
o> 2 16
zég under Rule 43-C? )
- S . . 17
- g The Court: The time of day that he signed the affidavit has
) 1%
2 absolutely no connection, [
19
Q Did you, at the time you signed the affidavit, have a report from '
s 20
your deputies with respect ‘to what happened at the meeting on the previous
21
night? ‘ 1
: 22
¥r, Pitts: We object, .
28
The Court; 1 can't tell at this time, Go ahead. Overrule.
24
Q When you signed the affidavit charging Bermard LaFayette with the
' erime of vagrancy, had you received a report from your deputies as to what had
. . 26
.. taken place at the mass meeting of negroes on the previous night?
aot 27 .
Mr. Pitts: Now, we object to that, your Honor., It 1_:/relevnnc .
2% H
hereé, He vas charged with vagrancy. : o 4
The Court: Overrule. Go ahead, : 3
30 by
. AP
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, . i
Mr, Pitts: We except. ; .
|
Mr. Gayle: That is hear-say evidence, your Honor. i 2
N ]
The Court: Overruls. ; 3
The Witness: 1 was noi even aware before or after the meeting. . 4
Q What was the basis for the charge against Bernard LaFayette for vag=
) [ Y
L

rancy? ) . o .
Mr. Pitts: Now, we object to that. It's incompetent, irrclevan:7,

{mmaterial. And it is a charge in the State of Alabama, ic's

<
> z .
| 3]
E ot ainfull loyed.,
Zs g ( y employ | »
.é'% Q And from whom did you get those reports? 15
=z .
03 g Mr. Pitts: We object, 16
(-]
]
3 z%; The Court: Sustsin the objectionm. 17
[ 4 -
4
E % Mr. Doar: May I make inquiry under Rule 43-C for information 18
giver lav enforcement officer? 10
4 H
The Court: From time immorisl it is confidential. Overrule. 20
Mr. Doar: Would the Court permit me to state the covernmgnt's 21
' By
ition? .
pos 129
3 ! The Court: I sustain the objection, Go ahead, 23

pumerous items of vagrancy in the State of Alabsma ==~ that a

9
man or woman can be a vagrant. And he wss acquitted of the 10

1 charge.
] 1n
¢ The Court: I uynderstand that, Overrule, 2

Q You may aasver,

A 1 had reports, numercus reports, that he was not 1

Q 1sn't it a fact that you have offtcial reports from your deputies, .24

tioning under Rule 43-C?

that he was at the meeting soliciting funds on the

. Mr. Bates snd Mr, Sutl:zer, 25
4 » !

previous night? 26

Mr., Pitts: Now we object to that, ;21

The Court: Sustain the objection. ‘22‘

1

Mr. Doar: Will the Court allow me to pursue this line of ques-: 2

30
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The Court: Mr. Doar, if it has anything tc do with this, all

right;
that time.

but 1f it kasn't I don't see any reason to spending all 2

Now, the men was arrested, was acquitted, and I can

(1]

see oo relevancy here. If you insist that we hear it, go ahead, 4

Mr, Madison: Your Homor, 1'd like for counsel to point out :he: .
- P

[ 3

relevancy jct';;he testimony, 1f he is proceeding on the theory

that the sheriff knew about this meeting, and knew that this | 7
particular witness was participating in the meeting, and that 8
kmiu that, knowing that he was 2 lcgder of some kind, he 9
then swore out s warrant attempting to make hixm. cease hie ac:iv-w'
i{ties and thereby intimidating in some way the other negroes . 1
who might have wanted to register, if that is she purpose of it 12
then I state to the Court that we think it is objectionable. 13
The Court: Go ahead Mr. Doar, 14
Mr., Doar: Did you say go shead with the questioning, or go 15
aheed? ‘16
The Cours: 1s it relevant or not? 17
Mr, Doar: Yes, ycur Honor, we feel it is very relevant to the 1%
facts and questions at issue in this case, whether or not this )
was 2 baseless arrest for the purpose of interfering with the 20
right of unregistered negroes to register to vote, Ar_:d vhat 21

{nformation and what facts this man had in swearing out that 22

We really think it is  on

'

varrant, we believe is very relevant.
very relevant. ‘94
Mr. Gayle: There is no charge against this boy for registering‘%
and there is no inter{ering with the voting. It is mot shown hess
was in the court house., No allegation set out in here, You '27

have to interfere in some way with registration at the time, 28

And furthermore he is not even a resident of Alabama,he couldn’tan

|

register. . : 130

e e i e e e =

S R

L




3 The .m::: Overrule.

1

Mr. Pitts: We except, 2

Q Q Sheriff Clark, at the time that you sworn out this warrant for Bosiej 3

4 " Reese you'd had reports that he’d been begging for money, Isn't that true? A‘ 4

fi Yes. | ’ s

Mr. Pitts: We object to that, We object to that., I couldn't

undsrstand, ‘ ) 7

Mr. Dcar: That he was begging for money. B : 8

Mr. P{.c:s: Is that Bosie Reese or Bernard LaFayette? 1 object, 9

Mr. Doar: Ixcuse me, ; ’10

Q When you swore out the warrant fo; the arrest of Bernard Lafayette ' 1

1 you had repog:: that he was begging for money? A Yes, ' 12

; > i Q And those reports were official r.eports from your deputies? i18

.i ’:‘ 3 Mr., Pitts: Now we object tothat, where those reports come frc:vm.14

? e :%% The Court: 1 think it is confidential, and I think it is ob- 15

:Qi 3 jectionable, Aayway you had reports. 16

i 2%% - rhe,.?{f?e'". Yes, sir. I"

: '§' Q@ 4£nd these reports caxe fromyour deputies Suther and Bates? 18

Mr, Pitts: Now we objec: to that, as to vwhere the reports 19

come from, ’ - :20

The Court: Well, if they came from a deputy I think they prob-‘ 21

! sbly are admissible, If they came from an informer they would ‘22

) not be, ' '23

The Witness: Cawe from an informer, ‘ ;24

The Court: All right. Susta.in the objection, !25

1 Q I want to show you your testimony before the justice of the peace "’“ZG

Mr. Picts: (Interrupting) We object to that. 27

. i

1 d Mr. Doar: Excuse me, before Judge Mallory. igg

The Court: Go abead, {-_»9

i Q ln :he case of the Sca:e of Alabama versus Bematd Lal-‘ayet:e, and I :30
F e e e 2 - R S S ..,__-r, -
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direct rour attention to the questions on page 21 of that hearing, A May 1 | !
" read back a little bit? f )
Q Yes, sir,,you may, A (Witness turns back several page; in said N
. transcript and silently riads) On page 15 it'lays there have been numero9s 4
reports. '
Q I know, but I'm asking you about the report that he had been begging 6
on Monday. Hadn't that report come from your two deputies, Suther and Bates? 7
A They were two of the ones that reported, yes. 3
Q Had you ever talked to Bernard LaFayette befo?e you iwore out the 9
varraant for his arrest? A 1'm not sure whether it was before or after 1 10
talked to him, 1
Q To refresh your recollection I will ask you whether or not you had 12
a'convers_atiou with him in your cffice smtim shortly after you arrestad 18
Bosie Reese on the 17¢h? A Yes. 14
Q. And he told you what his name was at that time? A Yes, 15

. Co=ordinating Committee?

Q And you knew who he was at that time? A I didn't know him by sighty .

Q You knew he was LaFayette --~ you knew his name was Bernard LsFay-
ette?
Mr. Pitts: We object to that, your Honor. He is esrguing vich
the witness, .
Q You knew the name Bernard LaFayette? A Yes,
Q And you knew that he was connected with the Student Non-Violence
A Yes. '

Q And you knew that he was bere working on the voters registration?.

A 1 don't know whether I knew it at that time or not.

Q Had you been advised that prior to the 18th. of June that some un-

17

2

1

25

- 26

' known persons had committed an assault --- an alleged assault --- upon Bernard 27

LaFayette?

Mr. Gavle: We object to that question.

Let me finish the question.

Mr. Dosr:

iog

'
i

i

S

i
y

|

{
1
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Q Were you aware that prior to the 18th. day‘ of June that Bernard La-

. Fayette made a complaint to ths City police alleging that some unknown p‘eraonsl !
had assaulted him on the streets of Selma on, I believe, the 1llth. of June?
Mr. Gayle: We object to that, ‘ ’ | 3
The Court: Sustain the objection, i T
Mr. Doar: Will the Court permit me to continue under Rule 43-C? :
The Court: 1 sustain the objection. 7
Q After you swore out the warrant for thk arrest of Bernard LaFayette ,‘ §
tell me whether or not Ne was picked up about 10:30 that night by one of your 0
deputies, ' 1
Mr, Gayle: We object, your Honow, ?11
The Court: Go ahead, Overrule. : 12
The Witness: Will you repeat the question, please? bm
Q After you swore out the warrant for the arrest of Bernard LaFayette
on the 18th., day of June, 1963,_can-you tell me wvhether or not Bernard LaFay=- 15
ette was picked up by one of your deputies abcut 10:30 that night? 16
Mr. Cayle: We object, may it please you'r Honpr, unless he ‘17
knows of his own knowledge. 518

The Court: Technically you are correct, but 1 will let him an- 19
sver, !

20

The Witness: It was reported to me that he was, ‘ ‘21
{

Q Did you have any interview with him sfter he was arrested and before
!

he was tried? A No, 1 did not. f%
Q Did you make any further investigation of his background before he 24
was tried? A Did I make what? >

Q Any further investigation of Bernard LaFayette before he was tried 26
i

' before the County Judge? Lo
Mz, Pitts: Now your Honor, I'm objec:ing to that question, I%

The Witness: Yes, I did. i29

Q What vas your investigation? A Inquiries to people, iao

-
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Q What did you £ind? A 1 could find no evidence that he was gain- . .
" fully employad. I 2
Q Di;! you £ind any evidence that he vas here vox;king on the voter reg-. 3
istration? A I don’t remember. ( ‘
qQ On the Voters League? A. 1 don't remember that, 5
Q Did you have any evidence that he was here working with the Dallas
County Voters League? A I dont remember at this time, : 7
Q Did yod ask any negr§ citizens of Dnllns‘County. what Bern:;rd» LaFay~
ette was doing in :his‘.coun:y? A No,- I~ did not., I thought it would be a 9
vaste of time. 10

Q Did you make an arrest of a negro nmmed Alexander Brown om the 22ad, 1

day of July, 1963? A That's vhat he told me his rame was, T12
Mr. Pitts: What date was that aow? 18
Mr. Doar: July 22, 1963. ’14

Q Did you know Alexander Brown before he was arrested? A I had heard 15

the name, . 16
Q Did you know that he was working with Bernard LaFayette in Dallas 1”7

County? A It was reported to me. : 1%

Q You were aware of the fact that he testified at the Bosie Reese tri- 19

ol om the 1lth, of July? A Yes, 520
Q You were sware of the fact that he was the other person who was in .21

ti\e court house with Bosie Reese on the day that.you arrested him? A I don‘t‘z,;

- know that, except ghrough his testimony, 23
Q You did hear his testimony in the County Court? A No, I did not. ;24

Q Did you hear any of his testimony? A I was in and out of the court 25

| room, and I don't remember now, ) .26
: i
Q But you did know that he did testify? A Yes, ‘o7
. [
Q As one of the defense witnesses? A Yes, :23
: !

Mr. Doar: That's all of the questions I have at this time, 1'd 29

like to have an opportunity during the noon recess to consult | g3p

Do e e — — .
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Q And you said that you organized the sheriff's posse, A Yes. 11

- would arise.

Q From time to time have the_y been called out by the she_riff's office 26

! to help in emergencies in Dallas County? A Yes,
i ’ .

| thirty days during the big flood here.
Q The big flood here, A That's right,

27

'S

with whoever is examining the reports and 1f necessary to re- . t

. ' {
call the sheriff back. ! 2
Mr, Pitts: 1 want to ssk the sheriff some questions. ' 3
e i 4

'
‘ -
- i@

i
_ - : L 6
CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. PIITS: .7
Q Did you testify to your erperience, Sheriff Clark, the question you ‘ 8

"were asked about did you attend any schools === did you attend the local FBI 9

schaol that they have here? A Several of them, yers. :l"

Q That was some three years ago, is that correct? A About that time..lz
Q And at thst time did you deem that it was necessary to have an auxe 13

tliary force of the sheriff's department in the event of any riot or dmnstra-u

tions here? A Yes, 18
Mr. Doar: We object to leading. : ' 216
Mr. Pitts: All right, sir. You put him on the stand. ’17
Mr, Doar: Well, 1 think =-- tls

Mz, Pitts: 1f the Government didn't lead this witness, Judge, '19

1 never heard one led, . 20

Mr. Doar: He is an adverse witness, so far as the Government o1

is concerned, ' 22

Q And vhat vas the necessity of the sheriff’s posse in your opinion? 93

. A It vas === er === any demonstration or riot or floods or any emergency that 24
! 1

: 26

f

27

Q Has it all been in riot or demonstration? A No, they helped about 2§

29

0
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'you have had officers at these meetinge? A I was informed

Iadvance of any demonstrations or any --- that may take place? A Yes,

! tion.

4 - . 1
Q All right, sir. Now, 1'11 ask you, Sheriff, what was the reason that

by the FBI and also

~

by leaflets that there would be a mass meeting of negroes for the puipose of

(]

urging voters registration at the church. 1 went down with the regular depu- j

*»

ties to observe the meeting, to see what was going on, and to see if there was
- R

any need'{gr any of our surveillance ar any protection whacsoever. And ve went

6

“dowm, snd at that time we spotted quite a few cars with out~ef-county tags, and 7
alzo about six cars with unknown people.tnizhem parked in the vicinity., And . 8

these wa: quite a few people there that 1 dida't know, And that was when I 0

called che posse to the scene, : '10

Q Were those white pecple you saw? A Yes. ;ll

Q In that vicinity? A Yes. ) '12

Q And that was out here on Broad Street? A: the church on Broad Screetls

right across from the fire station? A Yes.

14
Q And that was the first meeting that they hzd that you know of? A 15
Yes, sir. ’ 16
Q And at that time did you call the posse out? A Yes, 17

Q And what was the purpose of calling the posse out at that time? A 18

To protect the people inside the church, 19
Q And to p;evenc viQIencez A Yes, ta prevent violence, ‘20

\ Q All righe, sir. Now, what has been the purpose of you having your o
officers inside these meetings at the church? A To see if they were going to oo

start any demonstrations or riots in the church and come outside, To work up g¢q

in the church and violence outside. ?24

Q Did you have any purpose in protecting these people, too, that was ingg

1

_the church? A Yes. ) 26

Q And I will ask you, is it important for law enforcement to kmow in 27

I have 2y

. been advised by the FBI on each one of these meetings and asked to have protece 2y

30

4
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5 Q On each one of them, A Well, I wvont say on sach one of them, but I'
}
i
i

!
1
have been advised of several of them, and I have been advised to have protece 2
I
tion there, . ! 3
Q And {s it important that law enforcement know where and when demon- ' 4

. strations may take place? A Yes. |

(=]
o

Q All right, sir, Now, Sheriff, to your knowledge at any of these

- &

meetings that have been had that Mr., Doar was talking about, where your offi-'
cers vere present, have any of those officers by your instructions intimidated
" or threatened anybody at any of those megings? A Definicely not. 9 i

Q Did you imstruct them to intimidate or threaten anybody? A Defini:pi‘;

ly not. : 1

Q Did you instruct them to interrupt those meetinge in any wav? A 1 12

o

i > i did not, 13
J . 5 g Q Now, Sheriff, have you yourself intimidated or threatened azy citi=- 14

. 'l’% zens of Drllas County, white or black, for the purpose of preveating him to 15 t

‘a { ;J 3 vegister to vote? A No, I have not, 16 »

;gg Q Now, let's get to Bosie Reese, In the Dallas County court house af- 17 ¥

] E % ter it was rebuilt, do all of the offices, such as the tax assessor's office .13 r
: and the tax collector’s office and the Probate office, license department, do,m
; they have counters with wind.ows that open out into the hall of the court housely,
- ‘A VYes, | . 21

Q Do lines form there at various times? A Yes, . \22 ’

Q Do they have long lines at times? A Sometimes they wrap complttelylm

‘around the hall, ‘ .,24

: Q And has it been the practice of the officials of Dallas County to 25
' have a deputy in the hall during the time that there Iis a line out there? A :25 E

PRERR TR

At all times, ‘
: !
! A 3
( Q@ And has that beén going on for sometime? A Yes, ;23
i [
. Q And on this occasion that ~--, Now the registration office doesn't | 29 3
i 3
130§
I

_have a window that opens out in the hall, do they? A No.
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> .
On this gccasion that Bosie Reese was there, was there a line there?

>
[
.3
[ ]
.
o~

Q Was thare white people in that line? A Yes,

[

\ Q Did you know some of those people? Did you know some of them? A
‘ Yes. 3
Q Was Mrs. Tom Rives in that line? A Yes. _ 6
Q And was this negro, Bosie Reese, there with a camera? Or Alexander 1
Brown, Did they have a c:mep? A 1 saw Bosie Reese zheu; "
Q Did he have a camers? A Yes. °
Q Was there some a:he.r negro there with him? A Not at the first :ime.w
Q All right, Now, was anyone else talking to anybod)" in the line :h.e"fl
A No, sir, 12
Q Do you know whether anv pictures wvere made of that line? A 1t was 13
reportéd to me, 14

Q It wvas reported to you that pictures were made of that line, A Yes.15

Q All righg. Had you had a complaint that caused you to leave your 16

office? A Yes, 17
Q Now, after you told Bosie Reese to leave the corridor of the court 1%

hous_e, did he leave? A 1 am not sure vwhether he did ‘or not. He went toward 19
the front entrance of the court house. 2
Q Now, 1'll ask you this: the only seats in the court house are the o

, seats at the main entrance? A Ask that again, please, ‘22
Q The only seats in the hall of the court house are the seats in the ‘23
, main entrance, Is that correct? A Yes, 24
| Q And some seats near the Probate Office? A Yes, I25
; Q Are those seats at the Prebate Qffice retained for people that are ‘26
| sttending the Probate Court? A Yes. 27

Q And Bosie Reese was up and down that hall, do you know? A 1 sav hinpg

there twice,

he come in, did you arrest him? A The second  :0

Q Now the second time

ot e o g s e s P e e
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| time I sav him I arrested him, ° ;
: .
Q And you had previouslty told him to leave the hall of the court house.,
S 2
A Yes. - : t
. ) 3
Q All right, Now, what name did he give you as his name? A Bosie
. . : . 4
| Reese, !
Q And how old is Bosie Reese? A Nineteen, ;
‘8
Q Nineteen yearts old, A Yes, !
i 7
. Q Do you know where he lives, or where he told you he lived? A 1In
K < ’ 8
. Selma, '
. -9
Q In Selma, Did he tell you he was attending any school? A No,
10
All right., So you arrested Bosie Reese at that time, {s that cor-
, u
‘gect? A The szcond time Y saw him, '12

The car pulled up and stopped, and I asked the guy on the right-hand side who

Q All'.right. Now, he was tried subsequently in the Dallas County Court,
13

is that correct? A Yes.

1

Q Now after thst on July 22, 1963, just a few days sgo, did you arrest 18

a man named Alexander Brown? A That was the first name he gave we,

8
Q All right, Had he been previously arrested? A No. ';
Q Had you sgen him previously in the court house? A Yes, ‘18
Q Where was he arrested at? A He was arre-~ted in the allev back of ‘
Roland Jordan's filling station on Broad Street, 20
Q Was it da2y time or night time? A Night time. ?21
Q w:rg you the arresting officer? A Yes, 22
Q What did you stop his car for? A Having one headlight. 23
Q One heaalight. 1s that what attracted you to that car? A Yes, ;24
Q Didl you know that Alexander Brown was driving that car whem you ltoy;- 5
ped 1£? A No, 1 did not. ‘ - 526
Q But you stopped it becaﬁse of one headlight., A Thafs right. :27

t
i

Q All right, now. When you stopped it what did Alexander Brovn do? A%

i
i
!
i

| was driving and he said, "Him"., And I went around and he was getting out of ‘q

Lo
-

o

>
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the driver's side, and I asked him, "Were you driving the car?” And he said,

[

- "Yes," and I said, "What is your name?” And he said, "Alexander Brown',

[

Q Did you tell him he had anly one headlight? A I told him, I said,

(3]

"Well, I'm the sheriff and you have only one headlight." And I said, "Turn 4
_ the lights on and come .around and loock." | o 5
Q Did he do :!u!".‘! A He wenz arcund and looked » and he hit the dimrs 1
switch andAthere were two, g Q
Q All right. Now, did you ask him for his driver's license? A Yes.
Q Did he give it to you? A Not ac first. ‘ 9
Q Uh;: did he say? A I told him, I said, "I & the sheriff, I am 10
checking éhn driver's license. You were driving the automobile.” . 11
Q What did he say then? What did he say to you about his driver's 1li. 12
cense? A He reached and pulled out his b'illfol.d and handed me his billfold, 13
‘and 1 said, “I want your driver's license, not your billfold;" 14 ‘
Q And did hg pull his driver's license out? A He pulled his driver's 15
license out and handed it to me then, -‘16
Q All right. Now, that driver's license that he handed to you, did it 17

give the name of Alexander Brown «=e issued in the name of Alexander Brown? 1%

™

A No, 91:. ‘19
Q Who was {t {ssued to? A Alexander Lional Love. ) ;20
. Q Ahxmder who? A Lional Love, 21

Q Alexander Lional Love, What was the address? A Birminghem, Alabamay,.

Q‘. Birmingham, Alabams. Did he ever present any driver’s license issue 24 E

‘ ¢d in the name of Alexander Brown? A No, he did not, .‘I24
Q Did you arrest him? A Yes, !26
Q .Did he tell you at that time his name vas Alexander Brown? A He :z(;

" told me his name. Later on he said his name was -== he told me at first his 27

name was Alexander Brown, .and then after he gave me his driver’s license he .23

20

; told me that his name was Alexander Lionel Love, )
£

'
l
!
A

Q Nov, the alley behind the Gulf Service sncion, now 1: that a very ";o

T
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i
g secluded part of town? Is there any reason for cars td be going up and down

" that slley? A I could see no reasonm.. . 1
Q And it is in the bnckAof business, isa't it? A Ihnt}s‘ right, j
Q On that alley, is that right? A Yes. ?
Q And bouses back on that alley, too.’ -Is that correct? A Yes, ‘f
Q Now, And he finally told you his name was Alexander Love. A Yes, 0
Q 'Is that the first time that ‘you knew his correct name? A Yes. :
Q 1Is that the first time that you knew that he went by the name of Al-
_ exsnder Lovd- A That's righ:. o
Q Did you nake a charge against him? A Yes, | 10
Q And what did you do with him? A Charged hixm with improper lights "
on an automobile, ax;d alsc concealing his {dentity. ' 12
Q Was any charge made about his driver's license? A No. 18
Q Now, was he carriu.! to the 3ail? A Yes., "
Q Was he bogked? A Yes, —

Q Did he make any statement or say anything to the officers that were 16
ot the 1ail1?7 A I don't know, T didn't take him to the jail, 17
Q You didn't take him to jail, All right, Is that case now pending

in the Cirecuit Court? A In the Dallas County Court, . ™
Q Dallas County Court, And {s that the same Alexander Brown, alias 20
Alexander Love, that you saw over here in the Dallas County court house? A 21

Yes. ' ;
. 22

Q And he i{s the man down here with the Coordinating Committee or some- 23

thing? A It was reported to me he was, 24

Q 71'l1 ask you one more time, did you know who was in that sutomobile 25

' when you stopped it? A I did not. ‘96
% qQ Hoﬁld you have stopped that car regardless of vho was in it, or whe 97
3

. was driving {t? '28

; Mr. Doar: Objection, please, We object to leading, a9

The Court: Sustain the objection, | 30

—y
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4
Q All right. Now this man, Bernard LaFayette. 1’11 ask you one other

 question, Sheriff, back to the court house, You are custodian of the court

house, is that correct? A Yes.

Q And it nas been the policy of the sheriff's department to prevent

—_— —— ._.,' e e e ——— —— e+ e ' e

(1]

.4

anybody from interfering with any line irn the court house. Is that correct? -

9

A Yes, 6

Q Have you ever intimidated any person in the Board of Registration 7

line? A No, 1 haven't, 8

Q Have you ever attempted to prevent acy person, wvhite or negro either, 9

from getting in the Board of Registration office? A No, I haven't. 10

Q Have any of your officers done it? A Not to my knowledge. 1

Mr, Pitts: That's all, : 12

> 3 13
0

:}‘ u
- Lo
=

%0 15

w el O CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. MADISON: 16
° -

3§,§ Q Sheriff, I believe you testified that there were ten or twelve g.-moplg17
[ S

= .
; g in the line at the time Bossie was arrested ==~ Bosie Reese? A I'm not sure 15

sbout the time he was arrested, There were ten or twelve at the time I talked 1

: to him the first time, 20
Q Did you see anybodSr in that line leave on account of your deslings 21

vith Bosie Reese? A I did not, ‘22

‘ Q As far as you know, all that were in line went on in and registered ‘23

as usual? A Yes, ‘94

Q Do you have any recollection of anyone in that line, either white o.r‘25

i black, complaining to you about his presence there and pictures being taken  o¢

and didn't want it taken? A Yes, o7

: (Interrupting) :
! Mr. Doar:/ Your Honor, 1 object. The witness testified that a 29

complaint was not made to him, and unless the witness has per- 30

' Q Do you know who that was? A Caldwell Cook spoke to me in the line -8




5

o P o B T
i sonal knowledge of the complaint 1 object to it on the grounds
1
it iz hear-say. !
: ‘ - 2
} @ The Court: Was the complaint made £o you or to your officer,
b4
v
77 Sheriff? T :
d P4
=3 The Witness: Made to my officer. _
E )
3 . - The Court: Sustain ths objection. i
6
Q Did ydu have any pricr knowledge of Bosie === by the way, wzs Bosie 7
Reese convicted or not when he was tried? A He was convicted, ’
-~ ’ ] 8 3
Q And vho tried him? Judge Mallory? A VYes. 9 H

Q Had you had any prior knowledge of Bosie in any way before he vat in w

the line at that time? Did you know about any of his previous convictions, {f 1

he had any? A I had never seen or heard of him before. -12 3
; Q Do you know now? A Yes, . 18 1
] ‘ ’ 3
k Q Well, what do you know now about Bosie Reese's csonvictiona? u 1
‘ Mr, Doar: Objection, it {s immaterial. - ]
{o ot =
} The Court: Sustain the objection, . '16 1

Mr, Madison: Will your Homor permit me to procéed under Rule n

43 and state what I'd like to show by this witneas? '1'd 1ike 18

901«4‘ Cot M
FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF ALASAMA
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to show, {f your Honor will permit, and state for the record 19
that Bosie had been comvicted of l:uli-ng a vatch and also con-‘zo

victed of stealing a bicycle, ‘91

The Court: 1 still can see no relevancy on this, The sheriff :g ]
has testified that at the time he made this arrest bhe had no 20

knowledge of this man or of his prev%ws convictions, ,24 ¥
Mr, Pitts: The purpose of that testimeny is to show the type '25

of man that is down here and dealing =-= that Mr, Doar is _tryingac

to back up.' : ‘o7 i
o 3

i

a ‘ The Court: 1 still see no relevancy, Loy

|
- Mr., Madison: Now, 1'd like to give your Homor my ides of the 99

|
relevancy. 1 don't think that my client or these other clients 30
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who are charged with arresting persons. for the purpose of in-

timidation would pick out twice a convicted person of grand lar-z

ceny in ovder to bring about such intimidation.

3
The Court: Go ahead, Anything further? : _' P
Mr. Madison: Would you stipulate what this man's criminal rece .
- K D ]

ord is? : N :
N
The Court: I can see no relevancy, . 7
Mr. Doar: 1 object to that stipulation, : 8
The Court: Sustain the objection, -
10
11
12
REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. DOAR: 13

Q You were asked on direct-examination by your counsel if you had & 14

valkie-talkie in these meetings === ’ 15
Mr, Madison: 1 did not ask hix that question, That was asked 16
by Mr, Doar himself, - j"
Mr. Dosr: Well, 1'd like to ask him a little bit xmore about ‘1%

Q You did have ¢ valkie-talkie in each one of these meetings, report- 20

ing back to you what was going on. A At each meeting that I was there. 21

Q Did you have any tape recording device to take down exactly what was .,

said at the meetings? A No, 1 did not, i23

Q Did any of your deputies? A There was a tape recording made, but ‘24

i 1t was illegible. -
Q Served no useful purpése? A That's right. Couldn't understand a 96

f wvord on it. Too much background noise. o7

1 Q@ Did you instruct your deputies to take license numbers of cars that | 28
H 1
I vere parked around the places where these meetings were held? *99

Mr. Pitts: We objec:b. Incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial. " 30
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 fngs? A 1 don't know whether they were attending the meeting or ndt. We

The Court: Overrule,

Mr, Pitts: We excep:i:' : !

Q Answer. A 1 did. 2

Q Did you receive gron them a number of license plates at these meet~ 3

ings? A Yas, ve took down 'the tag aumbers of some. white men from Chilton j
County, who wers there observing; ;

Q Did you take down any license numbers of persons attending the meet-
7

ook down all the tag numbers in the vi:inity of eack place, ’
Q Have you done anych{ng with those tag numbers since you took :he; ?
dom? A ﬁe 1ocked wp to see who they belonged to. 1
Q Do you have a record of that in your office? A 1 don't know. .
Q Will you check on thst during the noon hour to see if you have that 2
gecord over there? A We could see mo purpose in it. 1'm not even sure ve ®
have it rvow, ) "
16
Q But will you check and see vhether you have that vecord, whether it 16

{s available? A I will be glad to. - ’
Q And if you have it, will you bring it over here? 1f you hove 17
A 1 will be glad to. . 19

Q Thank you. Now, vhen you testified that you had seen Alexander Brownzo

{n the court house before you arrested him on the 22nd, of July === is that 2
. 1

right? A Yes. ) ’ ‘
22
Q Was he in the court house near the registration line? A Not to my -
knowledge. ’ 3
24
Q Where was he? A 1In the court room --- Dallas County Gourt room, 25
b 3
Q Was that at the trial of the case of Bosie Reese? A Yes, 26 3
Q Did you see him in the court house when you arrested Bosie Reese? o7 t
v - i
. A 1 don't remember seeing him. : - B
) ! 4
Q Do you know whether or not Alexander Brown had a birth certificate o4 s
. - g
' with him at the time that he was arrested? A No, 1 do not. 530 f
e emeem e = R RS SRRt e ;I___ --:E
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-
Q Did you ask to see his birth certificate? A No, I did not,

Q Did you ask to see any othar identification card besidesbhis drive :
er's license? A No, I did not. The'driver'i license as far as we are cone .;
cerned is identification, . 4

Q Did Alexander Brown do anything else to conceal his identicy other -
than not disclosing to you at the time you arrested him, and not disclosing at :
the time he testified in the Bosie ieese case, that he was going under a dif- 7
ferent name than on his driver's license? A He told me his nome was Alexan-
der Brown and gave me ﬁraof that he was named different, 9

Q Did you inquife how that came about? A No, I was not concerned 0
vith {t, 1t was two different nrmes and that was all I was.concerned with, 1

Q You weren't concerned at all about how he happened to be going under 12
one pame and had & driver's license under saother? A No, I didn't see any 13
reason to be, . "

Mr. Doar: That's all, your Honmor. 18

The Couxrt: Sheriff, what time of night was that, that the ar- 16

rest was made? 17

The Witness: Approximately between nine and ten q'clcck. I am is

not quite certain, 19

Mr. Doar: Your Honor, can I ask one more question? a9

The Court: All right, ;21

Q Sheriff, at the ﬁime of the arrest, vas‘tha: near the First Baptist 22

| Church? A It was in front of ==- er === what do you mean, “near'? e
Q Was it close to the Baptist Church, the negro Baptist Church? A It:

»

vas'in the next block, . .

t2
o

Q And were you out at that place near the Baptist Church for the pur- 26

. pose of observing a mass meeting that was being conducted at that church? A 27

: Yes. . . f oy

+

; Q And did you have other law enforcement officers on duty out there at 29

30

i

|

. the same time! A Yes, v ]

E.:
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